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Cer tif ed Pa b lic Ac c o*ntants

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Natick, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (except for the
Natick Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December 3'1,,2011), which
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts' management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of
the Morse Institute in Natick, a discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by
another auditor whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included in these financial statements, is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goaernment Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
financial statements of the Morse Instifute in Natick were not audited in accordance with Goaernment Auditing
Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the report of the other auditor provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As more fully described in Note 1., the financial statements of the Morse Institute in Natick were prepared on the
cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, based on the report of the other auditor, the financial statements of the Morse Institute in Natick
referred to above, presents fatrly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Morse Institute in Natick as
of fune 30,2012, and the change in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with the basis of
accounting as described in Note 1.

In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present Íarly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts, as of June 30,2012 (except for the
Natick Contributory Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December 3'J.,2011), and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Goaernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 30,2013, on our
consideration of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Got¡ernment
Auditing Støndards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accountìng principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis (located on pages 4 through 13) and general fund budgetary comparison and certain
pension and other postemployment benefits information (located on pages 63 through 68) be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the i¡formation for
consistency with managemenfs responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

April30, 2013
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Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2t.12

As management of the Town of Natick, Massachusetts (Town), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended lune 30,2012.

Finønciøl Highlights

The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $140,958,063
(net assets). The Town's governmental activities has an unrestricted net deficit of $8,837,963 and its
business-type activities unrestricte d net assets total $8,47 8,29 6.

The Town's total net assets increased by 923,492,677.

As of the close of the fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances totaling fi63,700,688, a decrease of fi5,871,,369 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
$14,041,000 represents unassigned fund balance.

At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund totaled $14,510,553, or -1,2|l

percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

The Town's total bonded debt increasedby $7,485,389 during the fiscal year. The Town issued
917,086,845 of new debt during the year for refunding, building remodeling, community/senior center
construction, pavir.g, departmental equipment and water/sewer related items.

Oaeraiew of the Bøsic Finønciøl Støtements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial støtements, which consists
of the following three components:

1. Government-wide financialstatements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide reade¡s with a broad overview of the Town's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town's non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the governmenf s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned
but unused vacation leave, etc.).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (gouernmental actiaities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type øctiuities).

Town of Nøtick, Møssachusetts Require d Supplement øry lnformøtion



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended l:une 30,201.2

Governmental activities include general goverrunent, public safety, education, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreation and debt service (interest). Business-type activities include the Town's water and
sewer and golf course operations.

The government-wide fìnancial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements, All of the funds can be divided into
the following categories and are described below:

1,. Governmental funds
2. Proprietary funds
3. Fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as goverrunental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. Flowever, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inJlows and oufflows of expendable resources, as
well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a governmenfs near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the governmenf s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 575 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
Sovernmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general, high school project (capital project) and debt service funds, each of
which are considered to be major funds, Data from the other 572 governmental funds are combined into a single,
a ggre gated presentation Ittled n onmøj or g oa ernm e nt al fu n ds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-21, of this report.

Proprietary funds

The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer and golf course
operations, The water and sewer enterprise fund is considered to be major fund, while the golf course enterprise
fund is considered nonmajor.

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report.

Town of Nøtick, Møssachusetts Req uire d Suppleruent øry lnformøtion



Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended |une 30, 20L2

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the Town's programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to
that used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary funds provide separate information for the Town's pension trust fund. Private-purpose trust funds
and agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in the fiduciary fund financial
statements under the captions "private purpose trust funds" and "agency funds", respectively.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the

Sovernment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found onpages2T-
61 of this report.

Required supplementary inf ormation

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information. Presented in this inJormation is the budget comparison for the general fund and
certain pension and other post employment benefit information, which can be found on pages 63-68.

Toran of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts Required Supplementøry Information



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2072

G oa ernment-Wide E inøncial Anøly sis

The following tables present cutrent and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements,

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a governmenf s financial position. The
Town's assets exceeded liabilities by $140,958,063 at the close of the fiscal year and are summarized as follows:

G ou enntøúøI Actiuitie s Bu sire s s -Typ e Actio itie s

2011 201.2 2017 2012 2017

Assets

Current assets

Noncurrent assets (excluding

capital assets).. .

Capital assets (net).

Tolal assets.. . .. .

Liabilities

Current liabilities

(excludingdebt) .. .

Noncurrent liabilities

(excluding debt).. ..............
Cu¡rent debt.

Noncurrent debt .........

Total Iiabilities

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets

(net of related debt)

Restricted.. .

Unrestricted. . .

Totnl

$ 76,294,320

498,092

167,555,940

244,348,352

$ 84,198,267

4,997,283

119,889,564

209,085,1't4

s 73,554,667

1,7746V

36,293,"l'l.'t.

57,620,432

71.,566,354

1.,9-t2,"t69

36,091,59s

49,570,7-18

g 89,U8,987

2,270,746

203,849,051

295,968,7U

$ 95,764,621.

6,909,452

1s5,98'1,759

258,655,232

9,290,635

33,450,473

23,952"875

69,734,713

"136,428,696

1.-1.,056,394

25,734,"16'1,

7,633,388

80,"117,9t8

"t24,547,861

497,015

795,556

3,947,533

13,341,921.

-r8,582,025

300,121

607,577

1,968,068

73,772,279

9,787,650

34,246,029

27,900,408

83,076,634

11.,356,515

26,347,678

9,601.,4s6

93,890,797

1.55,0.r0,721 147,"t89,846

95,577,942 72,206,901,

27,173,677 'J,5,528,01,4

(8,831,963) (3,1,e1,,662)

24,560,-t-t7

8,478,296

22834,395

70,087,738

1.20,738,053

21,7ß,6n
(353,66n

95,04],296

75,528,074

6,896,076

Totalnetassets................$ -J.02,919,656 $ 84,543,253 $ 33,0j8,402 $ 32,922,^133 $ 140,958,063 $ 712,465,386

The largest Portion of the Town's net assets ($120,138,053) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g,, land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles,library books and
infrastructure), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for fufure spending. Although the
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town's net assets (927,773,67n represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance represents a net deficit of fi353,667. Of this amount
58'478,296 may be used to support business-type activities and ($8,831,963) represents an unrestricted net deficit
in governmental activities.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town reports positive balances in all three categories of net assets for
business-type activities. For governmental activities, positive balances are reported in each category except for
unrestricted net assets. Such resources have been consumed with the recognition of other postemployment
benefit liabilities.

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts Re quired Supplement øry lnformøtion



Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended lune 30,2072

Changes in Net Assets

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Town's total net assets increased by 923,492,677, compared to an
increase of fi14,972,752 in the prior fiscal year. These amounts are summarized as follows:

G o p e mm øtt ß I A ctíï, i t ie s Brts ines s -Typ e Actizti ties

2072 2077 20"t7

Revenues

Progrnnt Ra¡ewtes:

Chargesforsewices...... $

Operating grants md contributiom.
Capital grants md confributions... , .. . , , ..

Getrcral Ra¡enrcg

Real estate md personal propefty taxes.

Motor vehicle md other excise taxes... . .. ..

Hotel/motel taxes . .. . .. ... .....
Penalties md interest on taxes

Paymenfs in lieu of taxes. .

Grmts and contributioro not restricted

to specfic program

Uruestricted investnent income .... ..

Otler. . . . ..... . .

Total revenues 754,789,758 747,733,572 73,057,978 1,4,034,700 767,U7,076 755,768,272

70,654,623

25,696,629

20,632,775

87,479,792

4,1.07,257

7,297,423

424,185

47,583

4,293,522

755,369

77,798,200 $

24853,375

74,724,720

80,808,463

4,072,842

7,757,727

547,724

28,866

4,213,625

77,776

72,477,443

341{1,380

292,095

73,922,606 $

172,094

23,072,066

26,045,009

20,924,870

87,479,792

4,1,07,257

1,297,423

424,785

47,583

l )aa q))

155,369

25,720,806

24,965,469

74,724,720

E0,808,463

4,072,842

1,757,727

547,724

28,866

4,273,625

77,716

728,974

Expenses

General govement
Public safeW

Education...... .....

6,872,794

21,375,567

u,64,263
9,997,022

2402,827

2,173,765

3,039,1,20

3,250.485

6,577,046

20,571,979

82,798,202

10,898,009

2,279,977

2,788,230

2,968,973

7,769,072

77,802,270

2,775,257

6,872,1,94

27,37s,567

84,644,263

9,997,022

2,402,827

2713,765

3,039,1,20

3,250,485

9,925,796

800,560

6,577,046

20,577,979

82,798,202

10,898,009

2279,977

2,788,230

2,968,973

7,769,072

70,059,920

804,238

Public works

Health md humm seryices ..... .

Cultu¡e and recreation.. , .

Library......
Debt senice - inte¡est.

Wate¡ md Sewe¡..

Golf ....

Total expenses

Change in net dssets before trmsfers .. , , .. ,

Transfe¡s, net,

Change in net assets. ... , , . ..

Nel assets - begimi¡g o[ yeat .. ...

Net assets - end of year

733,628,643 729,931,362 70,725,756

2,332,762

70,864,758

3.770.542

(2,27s,8881 (2,715,25n

776,274 1,055,285

9,925,796

800,560

r0,059,920

804,238

744,354þ99 740,795,520

27,760,575

2,215,888

23,492,677 14,972,752

23,376,403 13,977,467 2i,492,677

t77,465,386

t4,972,752

702.492.634u,543,253 70.625.786

s 707,979,656 $ 84,543,253

32,922,733

g 33,038,407

37,866,848

fi 32,922,733 $ 140,958,063 g 777,465,386

Governmental activities increased the Town's net assets by fi23,376,403. In the prior year, governmental activities
increased the Town's net assets by $13,917,467. Ttre key element of this change is an increase in capital grants and
contuibutions of approximately $5,900,000 due to MSBA receipts for the new high school and capital contributions
for the Town's skating rink.

Business-type activities increased the Town's net assets by $11,6,274. In the prior year, business-type activities
increased the Town's net assets by $1,055,285. The key element of this change is a decrease in water and sewer
consumption when compared to the prior year.

Town of Nøtick, Møssachusetts 9 Required Supplementøry Information



Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended Iune30,20-12

Fund Finønciøl Støtement Anølysis

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements,

Governmental funds

The focus of the governmental funds is to provide i¡formation on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resoutces. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements,

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances totaling
963,700,688, a decrease of fi5,871,369 in comparison with the prior year. 22.0% of this total amount(914,040,937)
represents unassigned fund balance. The remainder of fund balance includes the following constraints:

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town, At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund totaled $14,510,553, while total fund balancewas$24,674,719. As a measure of the
general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total
general fund expenditures and transfers out. Unassigned fund balance represents 1,2.1,% of total general fund
expenditures and transfers out while total fund balance represents 20.6% of that same amount.

The balance of the Town's general fund increased by $7,350,158 during fiscal year 2012. Although the Town
recognized an approximate$18,194,000 budgetary surplus (excluding encumbrances and continuing
appropriations), approximately $7,328,000 of reserves was utilized for spending during the fiscal year. An
important reporting difference to note is that the one-time lump-sum MSBA receipt of fi6,640,698 is reported in
the general fund for budgetary purposesi but is reported in the debt service fund in the governmental funds
financial statement.

Financial highlights of the Town's other major governmental funds are as follows:

The fund balance of the high school project fund (capital project) decreased by $23,694,277 durtng the current
fiscal year. The fund recognized 916,333,453 of intergovernmental revenue during the current year and incurred
expenditure s of $40,027,730..

The fund balance of the debt service fund increasedby $16,942,273 durtng the current fiscal year. The fund
recognized 96,640,698 of intergovernmental revenue, $9,636,670 of proceeds of refunding bonds (current) and a
9664,905 premium from the issuance of refunding bonds (current), Subsequent to year-end, the refunding
transaction was completed as the bonds were retired.

Proprietar)¡ funds

The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the water and sewer and golf course enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to
98,457,759 and fi21,137, respectively. The water and sewer enterprise fund had a decrease in net assets of
9134,452, whereas the golf course enterprise fund had an increase in net assets for the year totaling$.250,726.
Other factors concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the
Town's business-type activities.

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 10 Requireil Supplementøry Informøtion



Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended |une30,2012

General Fund Budgetar)¡ Highlights

The original general fund budget of fi112,563.895 was increased by 94,373,854 (3.9%) during the year, The
following table summarizes the increase:

Purpose of Increase/ Decrease Amount Funding Source

Debt service principal..
Community services expenses,.
Transfer to capital stabilization fund..
Transfer to operational stabilization fund.
Debt service interest.
School department capital expense..
Police department capital expense..
DPW capital expense.
Community services expenses.
Community development salaries.
Public works salaries..
Community development capital expense.
Board of health capital expense.
Recreation capital expense..
Fire department salaries.
Council on aging capital expense.
Town clerk salaries........
Employee benefits.
Veterans services expenses.
Human services and council on aging expenses......
Recreation expenses..

Total increase.......

I 1,953,684 Tax levy
1,230,536 Tax levy
1,772,076 Unassigned fund balance

326,544 Tax levy
253,956 Tax levy
252,500 Capitalstabilizationfund
207,340 Capital stabilization fund
156,000 Capital stabilization fund
90,681. Unassigned fund balance

60,000 Tax levy
45,000 Tax levy
23,000 Capital stabilization fund
23,000 Capital stabilization fund
15,000 Capital stabilization fund
1.4,11.6 Tax levy
12,500 Capital stabilization fund
3,000 Tax levy

(192,862) Tax levy reduction
(292,589) Tax levy reduction
(4'19,056) Tax levy reduction
(560,572) Tax levy reduction

g 4,373,854

During the year, general fund revenues and other financing sources and uses exceeded budgetary estimates,
while expenditures and encumbrances and continuing appropriations were less than budgeted appropriations,
resulting in a positive budget to actual variance of approximately $13,514,000.

Cøpitøl Asset anil D ebt Administrøtion

Capital assets

The Town's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of the fiscal
year totaled 9203,849,051' (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets i¡cludes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles,library books and
infrastructure. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year totaled 947,867,892
or 30.7% (a30.6% increase for governmental activities and a0.'1.% increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year include the following:

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 11 Required Supplementøry lnformøtion



Managemenls Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended J:une30,201.2

The following table summarizes the Town's capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

G oo ernment a I Actia iti e s B usin es s-Ty p e Actia iti es

2012 2011 2012 2011

Totøl

2012 2071

Land............ g 10,124,124 g 10,124,724 6 1,053,254 fi 1,053,254 $

Construcfion in progress........ 78,788,945 31,,075,94-1 5,1.58,597 5,720,227

Land improvements....,......... 1,164,626 929,453 1,,904,312 L,985,669

Buildings....., 55,917,789 56,654,988 2Z6,35Z 109,968

Machinery and equipment.,... 1.,895,228 1,508,384 2Z4,SI9 '192,288

Vehicles...,.... .. 3,883,279 3,759,273 534,93'1 522,1,18

Library books........... 827,1.40 833,21.8

Infrastructure 74,954,809 15,004,1.83 27,121,1.4-L 2Z,7OB,OZ1

Totalcapitalassets................ g 167,555,940 g 119,889,564 S 36,293,11-t g 36,09l,595 $

M\4IRA notes.. 243,276 61.,908

MWPAT notes. .. ... ... ... .. . . . . . 276,3& 327,682 3,807,402 4,035,063

11,177,378

83,947,542

3,068,938

56,154,1.46

2,169,747

4,418,210

827,1.40

42,085,950

g 71,777,378

36,196,768

2,915,1.22

56,764,956

1.,700,672

4,281,391

833,218

42,-11.2,254

203,849,057 $ 155,981,159

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 43-45 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstanding was 9170,977,042, which is backed by the full
faith and credit of the Town, and is summarized as follows:

G oa ernment øI Actiaiti e s Bus ines s -Typ e Actia itie s Total

2012 2011 201.2 201.1 201.2 2011

Generalobligationbonds..... fi 93,411,,224 $ 82,423,624 fi 73,%8,n6 S n,649,976 $ 106,6s0,000 g 99,067,000

243,276 61,,908

4,083,766 4,362,745

Total bonds and notes,........ $ 93,687,588 fi 87,757þ06 $ 17,289,454 fi 1.s,740,347 $ 1.10,977,042 $ 103,491,,653

The Town's total bonded debt increasedby $7,485,389 (7.2%) during the current fiscal year. 977,086,845 of new
debt was issued during the year for refunding, building remodeling, communitlz/senior center construction,
paving, departmental equipment and water/sewer related items.

The Town received an AAA rating from Standard & Poor's for its most recent issuance of long-term debt on June
7,2012.

Additional information on the Town's long-term debt can be found in Note 9 on page 48-53 of this report.

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 1,2 Required Supplementøry Informøtion



Managemenfs Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,201.2

Economic Føctors ønd Next Yeør's Budgets

Natick, like all communities in America, continued to deal with the impact of a lingering recession during fiscal
year 2012. Although unemployment in Natick remained far below the national average (4.3% nDecember 2012
compared to a nationally non-seasonally adjusted level of 7.6% unemployment), citizens and the Town of Natick
alike faced significant challenges in maintaining the standard of living and services which many had grown
accustom to.

Fiscal year 2012 agatn found the Town of Natick having to rely on less state aid than in the previous year.
Despite this reduction, the fiscal year 2012 budget was brought into balance through higher than anticipated
revenues in other categories and substantial reductions in spending requests from departments. Positively, the
Town was able to begin the restoration of several positions in key departments for fiscal year 20"12, as well as the
elimination of long-standing purchasing and hiring freezes originally implemented in fiscal year 2009, as the slow
economic recovery continued.

The development of the fiscal year 2073 budget began more optimistically than fiscal year 2072 with at least level
state aid predicted, but with the Town still facing a multi-million dollar budget gap. Given the limitations of
proposition 27/2, Massachusetbs communities like Natick are limited to the rate of increase in base property taxes
to 27/zpercent annually. This places a large burden on other revenue categories to be as robust as possible to
maintain services. Forfunately, the fiscal yeat 2073 budget maintains and enhances services from previous years,
makes key restorations to the public schools, the fire service, public works and finance. Higher than anticipated
state aid, lower than anticipated health care costs, and favorable contract settlements with many of the Town's
collective bargaining associations allowed the fiscal year 2013 to be balanced with service enhancements.

Even with the favorable changes in revenue and restoration of services in fiscal year 2013, future forecasts
indicate that further service restoration will be difficult as revenues are not forecast to be robust enough to keep
up with future expenses.

Req ue st s for Informøti on

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all those with an
interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Town Hall, 13 East Central Street,
Natick, Massachuse tts 017 60.

Tozun of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 13 Re quire d Supplement øry Informøtion
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

IUNE 30, 2012

Primary Government
Com ponent

Un ¡t

Governmental
ASSETS Activities
Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents.......,...,.,...,. ......... $ 28,949,597 $
Restricted cash and cash equivalents....,..... 41,053,725
Investments.....,.
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Real estate and peßonal properly taxes,.,.,.,.,.,. . . ..
Tax, trash and util¡ty liens
Nlolor vehicle and otheÍ excise taxes
User charges

Special assessments. .,. .

Departmentaland other..,.,,.. .. . .

Intergovernmental
Internal balances
lnventory,

Business-b,pe

Activ it¡es

Morse

fnstitu te

2,571,966

1,556,170

370,074

24,565

440,832

1,746,838

ø1e,Mn

313,222
784,870

88,913,069
78,64L871

168,0s4,032

244,348,352

3,978,9't6
'1,598,512

2,331,260

540,281

ils,480
53,26'l

34,043
208,882

53,261

476,602

1,879,936

31,040,674
69,734,713

'I 03,r85,186

136,428,696

3,835,397 $
5,650.933

220,321

3,289,397

134,726

479,447

32,7W,994 S 628,012

46,704,658

- 7,679,907

- 4,M6

2,571,966

1,n6,49'l
370,074

3,289,397
159,291

M0,832
1,746,838

4,446

Total cu rrent assets

Noncurrent assets:

Rece¡vables, net of allowance for uncollect¡ble amounts:
Real estate tax deferrals..,. ,. . .

Special assessments ,., .,.,,
Intergovemmental

Capital assets not being depreciated,
Capifal assets, net of accumulated depreciat¡on,..,.,...

76,294,320 13,554,667 89,U8,987 2,247,9't3

- 3'13,222

1,715,602 1,900,472

57,052 57,052

6,211,851 95,-t24,920

30,08't,260 108,724,737

38,065,765 206,119,797 ________-___:_

51,620,432 295,968,7U 2,247,913

Total noncurrent assets,,.,.,...,...,

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Warrants payable...., .

Accrued payroll.,.
Tax refunds payable ..

Other liab¡lities
Accrued interest
Workers' compensation claims.....
Landfill post<losure . .

Compensated absences
Lonß-term bonds and notes payable . .,.,...,..

204,779

93,098

"t90,057

9,081

81,730

713,826

24,560,111

8,478,296

33,038,407 $

4,183,695

1,69'1,610

2,331,260

540,281

735,s37

53,261

34,043
217,963

27,900,408

Noncurrent liabilities:
Workers' compensation claims,,
Landfill post{losure.
Compensated absences ..,, . .,.,.....
NetOPEB obligation ...,.,.. .... ,.

Lonß-tem bonds and notes payable... . ... ..

23,952,875 3,947,533

33,243,510 4,444,548 37,688,058

53,261

476,602
't,961,666

31,754,500

120,138,053

9,800,2'17

88,290
14,072 1,111,225

11,27t,098
(353,66n 1,136,688

140,958,063 $ 2247,913

Tolal noncurrenl liabil¡lies ..

Total lidbilities..,....,..

13,341,92't 83,076,634

14,137,4n 117,322663

18,582,025 '155,010,72'l

NETASSETS
Invested incapital assets, netofrelated debt....,.. ........ 95,5n,942
Rest¡icted for:

Debt service 9,800,217
Permanent funds:

Expendable....... 88,290
Nonexpendable.....,.. .-. 14,072

Olher specific purposes.,. 11,271,098
Unrestricred .. 9,531,963)

Total net assets $ '107,919,656 $

See notes lo basic financial statements,

T ow of N ati c k, M n s s ¡ cltu s etts B isic Fi, wrciß I 9tn te ilrcnts



STATEMENT OF ACTryITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

8'10,36t
138,322

23,019,039

186,535

3"16,887
-t94,322

29,000
'1,002,-163

Capital Net
Grants and (Expense)/

Contributions RevenueExpenses

g 6,872,194 g

2'1.,3-t5,567

84,644,263

9,997,022

2,402,827

2,113,765
3,039,1,20

3,250,485

133,628,643

Charges for
ServicesFunctions/ Proqrans

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

Gene¡al government.
Public safety.. ..
Education
Public works. ...
Health and human services
Culture and ¡ecreabion
Library..... ..

Debt service - interest.

Total governmental activities. ...

Business-type activities:
Water and Sewer ..

Golf ......,...

Total business-lype activities.. .. .

Total primary government.... ,

Component units:
Morse lnstitute.

See notes to basic financial statements.

70,654,623 25,696,629 20,632,775 V6,@,676)

"t,377,147 
S

3,300,843

3,454,264

1.,257,475

273,676
-t,049,263

67,9s5

18,814,550

842,'J.47

976,084

6 (4,7M,686)
(17,876,402)

(39,356,410)

(7,7"10,871)

(1,872,264)

106,504

(2,942,165)

(2,248,322)

9,925,1.96 "17,840,748

800,s60 s76,695
324,829

23,55"1

-161,055 2,407,436

13"t,040 (69,274)

1.0,72s,756 1,2,417,443 348,380 292,095 2,332,1.62

144,354,399 ç 23,072,066 fi 26,04s,009 g 20,924,870 $ (74,372,4541

5 2,862 g 286,452 5

(Continued)

757

Tozon o[ Nøtick, Massnchusetts B øsi c Fhnncin I S t ntefl ,et rts



STATEMENT OF ACTryITIES (Continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2072

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

Component
Unit

Changes i¡ net assets:

Net (expense)/revenue (from previous page). . . . ... $ (76,644,616) S 2,3j2,L62 S (Z43lZ4SAl 5

General reaenues:

Real estate and personal property taxes............
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. . .. . .. ..

Hotel/motel taxes....
Penalties and interest on taxes.
Payments in lieu of taxes , . .. .. .. . .. .

Crants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs.. . . .. .. .. .. .

Unrestricted investment income
Transfers, net ..............,..

Total general revenues and hansfers.. ..

Change in net assets. ... .. ..

Net assets- beginningof year..,. . ..

Net assets - end of year.. ... fi 107,9-t9,6s6 $ 33,038,407

87,479,792

4,107,257

1,297,423

424,185
47,583

4,293,522

155,369

97,805,"t3t

23,492,677 757

-117,465,386 2,247,762

$ 140,958,063 $ 2,247,913

(Concluded)

87,479,792

4,107,257

7,297,423

424,'185

47,583

4,293,522

755,369
2,275,888 (2,215,888)

(2,2-ts,888)

116,274

32,922,133

1.00,02t,0-t9

23,376,403

84,543,253
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

luNE 30, 2012

General
Debt

Service

High fthool
Project Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

FundsASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents..... ., . f
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Real estate and personal property taxes ........ .........
Real estate tax deferrals
Tax and trash liens.. ...,.........
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. ......
Special assessments.. .... ..
DeparÍnental and other...
Inte¡govemmental........ ..,..

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents,......

TOTAL ASSETS. $

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES:
Warrantspayable.. .. .,...........,... $
Accrued payroll....
Tax refunds payable.......
Other liabilities..
Defened revenue
Due to other funds.......

TOTAL LIABILITIES ... .....,....

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable., . ... ....
Restricted
Comitted.
Assigned.
Unassigned. . . . . . .

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

28,949,s97 $ - $

2,571,966

373,222

7,556,770

370,074
32,957

440,832

1,25,237 ^r,470,706

^t,027,3M 2,628,855 76,942,273

176,478

151,501

20,455,253

28,949,597

2,57"1,966

373,222

7,556,^170

370,074

209,435
440,832

1,746,838

47,053,725

35,387,393 $ 4,098,967 s 76,942,273 g 20,783,232 $ 77,271.,859

7,533,275

7,475,420

2,331,260

540,28t
4,412,99'I

419,M7

70,772,674

7,027,3M
7,567,388
"1,575,434

14,510,553

$ 1,244,918 g 1,200,723

123,092

229,764

1,5s3,579

$ 3,978,916
'1,598,572

2,337,260

540,287

4,642,755

419,M7

"t3,57'1,17"1

2,854,043 16,942,273

74,072
"t9,685,'t97

(46e,676)

74,072

40,508,857

7,561.,388
"1,575,434

14,040,937

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCFS......... ,. ..

See notes to basic financial statements

24,674,7"t9 2,854,043 76,942,273

g 35,387,393 $ 4,098,96"1

79,229,653 63,700,688

$ 76,942,273 $ 20,7æ,n2 $ 77,27"1,859

Toun of Nøtick, Massøchusetts 18 B asi c F inancial S tstement s



RECONCILIATION OFTHE GOVERNMENTAL zuNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Total governmental fund balances (page 18)......,...... ................,. $ 63,700,688

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.. . . . "167 ,555,940

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds.. 4,642,755

In the statement of net assets, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debf
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due..... (545,4S0)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds and notes payable......... (93,687,588)
Workers' compensation claims... (106,522)
Landfill post-closure. .. (51.0,645)
Compensated absences... (2,088,818)
NetOPEB obligation.. (3"1,040,624)

Net assets of governmental activities (page 15),. ,...... $ "107,919,656

See notes to basic financial statements.

Toutn of Natick, Møssøchusetts 't9 B øsic Finønciøl Støtements



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGEg INFUND BALANCES

FOR TIJE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2012

General
High School Debt
Proiect Fmd Service

Nonma¡or Total

Govemmental Govemental
Fuds Funds

REVENUES
Reaì estate and personal property taxes . ,,, $
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes

Hotel/motel tax
Tax md l¡ash liens. , .

Pa),ments in lieu of taxes .......
Trash disposal
Intergovemental .

Special assessments .......,...
Penalties and interest on taxes
Liceroes md permits. .. ...., ,...
Fines md forfeitures.........
Departmental md other

TOTAL REVENUES..

EXPENDIruRES
Curent:

Ceneral govemment
Public safetl,
Education,

86,753,804 $
4,084,3&
"t,297,423

577,430
47,583

u7,990
23,498,855

ç

16,333,453

-$

6,640,698

86,753,804
4,084,364
"t,297,423

577,430
47,583

u7,990
52,797,332

28,348
424,785

2,274,500

290,466

7,604,988

610,858

183,048

6,324,326
23,677

67,955

5,706,282
610,858

18,541

883,466

490,864
9,079,89"1

2,3"10,053

6,974,752
7,320,980

97,954

4,677

424,785
2,274,500

222,577
2,498,706

Contributioro.. .. .

164,507

772636,529 16,333,453 6,640,698 72,751,639 '157,762,379

4,352,507
73,"t08,643

48,740,666

7,L07p82
7,7n,787

649,226
7,980,929

16,075,595

74,736,222

445,100
1,242,987

7,633,388
3,303,650

179,287,-!70

3,349,359

40,027,730

5,235,967

13,599,507

97,248,287

9,477,735

8,091,933

7,970,206

2,078,883
16,075,595
14,136,222

445,700

L,242,987

7,633,388
3,303,650

Employee benefits. ........
Property md liability irourmce.

Siate md comty charges . .....,,,
Debt service:

Principal
Interest.....,,..

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. .

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

oTHER FINANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Tra¡rsfers in ., .......,,,
Proceeds of bonds md notes.
P¡emium from issuance of bonds a¡d notes , , , , ..... .. ...

TOTAL OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES).

NETCHANGE IN FUND BALANCES .,......

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,,,.

FUND BALANCES ATEND OF YEAR . . ....,,,.

See notes to basic finmcial statements

40,027,730

(23,694,27n 6,640,698

21,097,960 780,4''.2,860

(8,946,327) (22,650,54't)

Proceeds of refunding bonds (current) .. ......
Premium from issumce of refmding bonds (cunent)..., ., ... ..
Transfe¡s out.. (392,399)

4,069,489

328,709

4,000,799

7,350,758 (23,694,274

17,324,567 26,548,320

s 24,674,779 5 2,854,043

(1,s33,601) (1,e31,000)

70,307,575 2,476,798 16,779,772

16,942,273 (6,469,s23) (5,871,369)

?,5,699,176 69,572,057

ç 76,947,273 S "19,229,653 ç 63,700,688

9,636,670

664,905

77,399

3,933,000

4,746,888

3,933,000

328,709

9,636,670

664,905
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2072

Netchangei¡fundbalances-totalgovemmentalfunds(page20)......,....... ........,............ $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. These amounts represent the related activity
of the current period.

Capital outlays........
Depreciation

In the shatement of activities, the loss on the disposals of capital assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds the disposals are not reported as
financial resources. As a resulç the change in net assets differs from the change in
fund balance by the net book value of the capital assets disposed.............,.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue.......

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the financial resources of govemmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
impact on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts represent the
related activity of the current period.

Bond proceeds.
Proceeds of refunding bonds
Bond maturities

(s,877,369)

52,004,863
(4,320,334)

(18,153)

(4,942,860)

(3,933,000)

(9,636,670)

7,633,388

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accrued interest payable 53,-166

Some expenses reported in the statement activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
These amounts represent the net changes:

Workers' compensation 243,1.48

34,043
21,102

(7,890,921)

Landfill post-closure. .

Compensated absences
Net OPEB obligation

Changes in net assets of governmental activities (page 17)...... g 2i,376,403

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

IUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents.... ......... .. . ....... . . $
Restricted cash and cash equivalents.. . . .. . , . .. .. ..

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Utility liens.. ,.

User charges.
Specialassessments ...

Total current assets.

Noncurrent assets:

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Special assessments. .. .

Intergovernmental.
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

War¡ants payable.... . .

Accrued payroll.
Accrued interest
Compensated absences.
Long-term bonds and notes payable..

Total current liabilities. .. .

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences

Net OPEB obligation
Long-term bonds and notes payable.. . .... . ..

Total noncur¡ent liabilities

Total liabilities

FTIND NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Due from other funds.. 4lg,44Z
Inventory...... ..

Water and
Sewer

Nonmajor
Golf Tota I

3,835,397

5,650,933

220,327

3,289,397
't34,726

419,447

4,446

3,704,622

5,274,934

220,321.

3,289,397

734,726

130,775

375,999

4,M6

"t,715,602

57,052
s,537,852

28,068,182

35,378,688

673,999

2,073,078

13,554,667

1,7'15,602

57,052
6,211,851.

30,081,260

L3,043,447 577220

2,687,077 38,065,765

48,422,735 3,"t98,297 51.,620,432

195,008

82,723

767,213
9,081

3,386,757

3,M0,782

9,771

1.0,375

22,844

560,776

603,766

204,779

93,098
"t90,057

9,081

3,947,533

4,444,548

81,730 - 81,730

642,732 71,094 773,826
11,726,921 1,615,000 73,341.,927

12,457,383 't,686,094 L4,137,477

L6,29zt6s 2,289,860

23,672,81r
8,457;J.59

887,300

21,137

1.8,582,025

24,560,77-I

8,478,296Unrestricted.

Totalnetassets,....,.,... g 32,"129,970 $ 909,437

See notes to basic financial statements.

33,038,407
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED ]UNE 30,2012

Business-Type Activifies - Enterprise Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services.....
Other. . . ... .. .. . .

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES....

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of service and adminisha hion...,..,........
MWRA assessment.....
Repairs and maintenance...,,............
Depreciation...

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES...,.

OPERATTNG TNCOME (LOSS)...........

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental...........,...
Premium f¡om issua¡ce of bonds and notes.......
Premium from issua¡ce of refunding bonds (current)...
Investment income..............

CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS,.

FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR....

11,833,548

7,200

576,695

Water and
Sewer

Nonmajor
Golf Total

fi 1.2,410,243

7,200

1,2,417,443

3,991,,097

4,460,55^I

302,137
1,321.,9t0

70,o75,695

2,341,748

78,649
"r08,973

1.40,778
'19,980

(6s0,061)

(301,681)

2,040,067

292,095
320,000

(2,s3s,888)

Interest expense.......... (SS2,4IS)

TOTAL NONOPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET,.,.....,... (227,586)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPTTAL CONTRTBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS... . 2,240,38r

Capital contributions.. 161,O55

"1"1,840,748

3,385,736

4,460,557

290,261

7,236,833

9,372,781,

2,467,967

78,649
'108,973

177,227

1,9,980

(134,452)

32,264,422

576,695

605,967

17,876

85,077

702,914

(1,26,2't9)

23,551

(e7,646)

(74,095)

(200,314)

"13'1,040

320,000

FUNDNETASSETSATENDOFYEAR....... S 32,729,970 S

See notes to basic financial statements.

2s0,726 1,'16,274

657,71,1 32,922,-t33

908,437 $ 33,038,407

Tozon of Natick, Massøchusetts B ø s i c F in øn ci q I S t øt ements



PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED IUNE 2012

Business-T Act¡vities - Ente ise Funds

Water and

Sewer
Nonmajor

Golf
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVTTIES

Receipts from customers and usels
Payments to vendors ...
Payments ¡o employees , ,. ..

$ 12,'t97,760 5 576,442

(6,t88,202) (437,872)

(1,583,682t (47,4531

4,42s,876 (8,883)

- 320,000
(2,53s,888)

Total

5 12,n+202
(6,626,074ì.

0,73r,r35)

4,4'16,993

320,000

(2,s35,888)

NET CASH FRolvf NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.., .. (2,535,s88) 320,000 (2,z1s,Bïs)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND REI.A.TED FINANCING ACTTVTTIES
Proceeds f¡om the issuance of bonds and notes

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTWITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTryITIES
T¡ansfe¡s in ....

P¡oceeds from the issuance of ¡efunding bonds
P¡emium f¡om issuance of bonds and notes
P¡emium from issuance of refunding bonds
Capital cont¡ibutions
Acquisition and corofruction of capital assets , , , ,.

Principal paymenls on bonds and notes
Interest experoe

NET CASH FROIvf CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTTITIES , ,

CASH FLOWS FROM IAIVESTING ACTryITIES
Invesfment income, , ,.

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,.,,., ..

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(Includes $2,437,083 and $ll,ll8 reported as restricted in the wate¡ and sewer

and golf course enterprise funds, respectively)., .,..,

CASH AND CASH EQUTVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Includes $5,274,934 and $375,999 reported as restricted in the water and sewer

and goU course enterprise funds, respectivel)ì .

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FIìOM OPERATINC ACTryITIES

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash from operating activ¡ties;
Changes in assets and liab¡ljties not requiring current cash flows:

Depreciation.
Net OPEB obligation... , , ,.

Changes in assets and liabilit¡es requiring currentcash flows:
UtiliÇliens ,.,....
User charges .., ...
Special assessments,,

Inventory.,,.
Warrantspayable .,,,.. . .

Accrued payroll..
Compensated absences . .,,,,...

't9,980 - 19,980

372,146 2,205,5571,833,41'l

7,146,145 134,628 7,280,n3

8,979,5565 506,n4 $ 9,486,330

$ 2,467,967 $ (126,219)

$

.. 1,476,U5
't,699,000

. 108,973

117,227

I 61,055

(1,383,866)

0,n2,138)
(483,6s3)

(76,554

341,330

23,551

(8,520)

(r 95,930)

(ee,402)

61,029

1,476,845

2,040,330

108,973

140,n8
161,055

(1,392,3861

(1,e68,068,

(s83,0s5)

0s,s28)

1,236,833

166,347

(43,371]-

256,988

143,395

186,354

1'l,416
(s3)

1,957,909

85,0n
2'1,740

(2s3)

9,072

1,700

117,336

s 2,341,748

1,321,910

188,087

(43,371)

256,988

143,395
(253'

195,426

13,116
(s3)

2,075,245

NETCASH FROM OPERATINC ACTryIT]ES

NONCASH IIWESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTryITIES
lnle¡govemental debt subsidies (MWPAT).,,....
Capital contributions

See notes to basic financ¡al statements,

T owil of N fltick, M n ssn chu setts

$ 4,42s,876 $ (8,883) S 4,476,e93

78,649 $ - $ 78,649

131,040 131,040
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30,2012

Pension
Trust Fund

(As of "t2/37/77)

Private
Purpose

T¡ust Funds
Agency
FundsASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents............,. $
Investments:

Equities. . . . . . . .

Mutual bond funds...
Fixed income securities......
Real estate
Alternative...

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Intergovernmental,...........

Total assets. . .

573,298 $

47,084,023
'15,06-1,282

1,655

9,550,272

4,0-12,148

3,01,0,789

370,386 $ 2,838,620

79,293,467 370,386 2,838,620

LIABILITIES
Warrants payable
Accrued payroll..

20,868
49,077

2,769,675Liabilities due depositors

Total liabilities.. 2,838,620

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.,....

See notes to basic financial statements.

79,293,467 $ 370,386 $

Toutn of Nafick, Massøchusetts 25 B øsic Finønciøl Statemeflts



FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employer...
Plan members......

Total contributions

Net investment income:
Net appreciation/(depreciation) in fair value of investments
Interest.

Total investment income (loss)..

Less investment expense

Net investment income (loss)....

Intergovernmental..

Transfers from other systems..

TOTAL ADDITIONS.......

DEDUCTIONS
Adminishation......
Retirement benefits and refunds
Transfers to other systems.

TOTAL DEDUCTiONS.....

CHANGE INNETASSETS.

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR..

See notes to basic financial statements.

Pension
Trust Fund

(As of 12/3L/1,1)

5,9"16,754

2,521,682

Private
Purpose

Trust Funds

8,438,436

(2,724,371)

3,347,837 870

623,466

(328,074)

295,392

870

870

277,033

577,488

9,528,349 870

't99,630

8,643,276
630,552

9,473,458

54,897

79,238,576

870

369,51,6

79,293,467 $ 370,386

Town of Nøtick, Møssøchusetts 26 B øsic F inønciøl Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,201,2

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. General

The basic fi¡rancial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described herein.

B. Reporting Entity

The Town of Natick, Massachusetts (Town) is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Board of
Selectmen.

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the Town.

The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as well as
other organizations for which the nature andf or significance of their relationship with the Town are such that
exclusion would cause the Town's basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete,

Fiduciar]¡ Fund Component Unit

The Town has included the Natick Contributory Retirement System (System) as a component unit (fiduciary
fund) in the reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationship with the
Town. Fiduciary fund component units are entities that are legally separate from the Town, but are so related
that they are, in substance, the same as the Town or entities providing services entirely or almost entirely for the
benefit of the Town.

The System was established to provide retirement benefits to Town employees, the Natick Housing Authority
employees, and their beneficiaries. The System is governed by a five-member board comprised of the Town
Comptroller (ex-officio), two members elected by the System's participants, one member appointed by the
Town's Board of Selectmen and one member appointed by the System's four other Board members. The System
is presented using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary funds
financial statements.

The System does not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available
unaudited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts'
(Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That report may be
obtained by contacting the System located at L3 East Central Street, Natick, Massachusetts 01760.

Discretel)¡ Presented Component Unit

Discretely presented component units are entities that are legally separate from the Town, but are financially
accountable to the Town, or whose relationships with the Town are such that exclusion would cause the Town's
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Town has included the Morse Institute in Natick
(Institute) as a discretely presented component unit because it is fiscally dependent on the Town and because the
nature and significance of its relationship with the Town is such that exclusion would cause the Town's financial
statements to be misleading.

The Institute provides support to enhance the operations of the Town's public library and is exempt from federal
and state income taxes as it is established under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2072

The Institute issues separately audited cash basis financial statements, which is a comprehensive basis of
accounting other than GAAP. The main difference is that the effect on earnings from accounts and pledges
receivable as well as accounts payable and donated services are not recognized. Complete financial statements of
the Institute, audited by another auditor, can be obtained directly from the Institute by contacting the Director at
14 East Central Street, Natick, Massachusetts 01760.

Ioint Venture

A joint venture is an organization (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. ]oint control means that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The Town participates in one joint venture with other municipalities to pool resources and share the costs, risks
and rewards of providing goods and services to venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general
public or specified recipients.

South Middlesex Regionnl Vocational Technical High School District

The Town is indirectly liable for the South Middlesex Regional Vocational Technical High School District
(District) debt and other expenditures and is assessed annually for its share of operating and capital costs. The
Town's fiscal year 2011 assessment total approximately fi7,397,000. Separate audited financial statements may be
obtained by contacting the District at750 Winter Street, Framingham, Massachusetts 07702.

C. G oa ernment-Wide ønd Fun d Fin ønciøl S t øtements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement activities) report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its discretely presented component
units. Gouernmentøl actiuities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmèntal ,errer,rrus, uru
reported separately frombusiness-type øctiaities, which are primarily supported by user fees. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from legally separate discretely presented component unit for which
the primary government is financially accountable.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements, Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

D. Meøsurcment Foctts, Bøsis of Accounting ønd Bøsis of presentøtion

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements apply allapplicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or prior to November 30,1.989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended 1une30,201.2

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or segment are
offset by Program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include the following:

privileges provided by a given function or segment.

or segment.

segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-days after
the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another
fund.

The high school project fund is a capital projects fund used to account for the design and construction of a new high
school.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2072

The debt seruice fund is used to account for the fiscal year 2012 current refunding transaction that was completed in
fiscal year 2013 (see Note 9).

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects, debt service and permanent
funds that are aggregated and presented in the nonmajor goaernmental funds column on the governmental funds
financial statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

Special reaenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Cnpital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary
funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Debt seruice funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned
to expenditure for principal and interest.

Permønent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmenf s programs and benefit the government
or its citizenry.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations, All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following proprietary funds are reported:

The wøter ønd sezuer enterprise fund is reported as a major fund and is used to account for the Town's water and
sewer activities.

The golf course enterprise fund is reported as a nonmajor fund and is used to account for the Sassamon Trace golf
course activities.

Fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciiry funds arã used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the government's programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported;

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries.

The priuøte-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. Agency funds do not present the results
of operations or have a measurement focus.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended 1une30,201'2

E. Deposits ønd Inuestments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quotations from a national securities and exchange
except for pooled funds, alternative investments and real estate, for which fair value is determined as follows;

Pooled Funds

The fair value of shares in managed investment pools is based on unit value reported by the funds.

Alternative Investments

Alternative investments are recorded atfair value as determined in good faith by the general partners of the
venture capital firms after consideration of pertinent information, including current financial position and
operating results, price-earnings multiples and available market prices of similar companies' securities, the nature
of securities, marketability, restrictions on disposition and other appropriation and do not necessarily represent
amounts which might ultimately be realized, since such amounts depend on future circumstances and cannot
reasonably be determined until individual securities are liquidated.

Real Estate

The fair value of real estate funds is based on independent third-party appraisals. The investment managers of
the funds are responsible for the reported value of those investments. Flowever, the structure, risk profile, return
potential and marketability of those investments differ from traditional equity and fixed income investments.
Determination of the value of these investments involves subjective judgment because the actual market value
can be determined only by negotiation between the parties to a sales transaction. As a result, the estimated values
may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the real estate existed,
and the differences could be material.

F. Accounts Receiaøble

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis of
accounting/ respectively.

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1't of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor's for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes are
due on August 1't, November 1't, February 1st and May L't and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not
paid by the respective due date.

Real estate tax liens are processed six months after the close of the valuation year on delinquent properties and
are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2012

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as

receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the Town, The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle
multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.

User Charges (Water and Sewer)

User fees are levied monthly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if they
are not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed annually in December and are
included as a lien on the property owner's tax bill. Water and sewer charges are recorded as receivables in the
fiscal year of the levy.

Special Assessments

Special assessments consist of sewer, sidewalk, street, RUST and Title V betterments and are recorded as

receivables in the fiscal year accrued.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables primarily consist primarily of ambulance, police details and trash ("Pay as
you Throw" (PAYT) program) and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued.

Intergovernmental

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expenditures are
incurred and all other grant requirements are met,

G. Alloutønce for Uncollectible Amounts

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis for
the following accounts receivable:

The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and are considered 100% collectible,
Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported.

Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100% collectible,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2012

H. Inaentories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories of the governmental activities, governmental funds and water and sewer enterprise fund are recorded
as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material i¡ total to the respective financial
statements and therefore are not reported.

Inventories of the golf course enterprise fund are stated at weighted average cost.

L Restricted Assets

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature of the availability of the asset.
Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments,
or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

I. Cøpitøl Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which consist of land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, equipment,
vehicles, library books and infrastrucfure (e,g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column of the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available,
Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $5,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction,
respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land and const¡uction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Capital Asset Type

Land improvements...
Buildings.
Machinery and equipment......
Vehicles.
Library books..
Infrastructure

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 201.2

K. Interfunil Receiaøbles ønil Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of abayerf seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as "internal
balances".

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as "Due from other funds"
or "Due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

L. lnterfunilTransfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanentþ reallocated between and within funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as "Transfers, nef'.

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

M. DeferreilReomue

Deferred revenue at the fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial
statements (full accrual).

N. Nef ,4ssets andEunilBøIances

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net assets have been "restricted" for the following:

"Debt service" represents amounts accumulated from the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) for
future payment of long-term debt service costs associated with school construction and net bond premiums
associated with excluded debt. These amounts will be amortized over future fiscal years. This amount also
represents an MSBA lump-sum payment and refunding bond premium that was ut'lized to finalize the current
refunding transaction subsequent to year-end (see Note 9).
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2012

"Petmanent funds - expendable" represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

"Permanent funds - nonexpendable" represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may
be expended.

"Other specific purposes" represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

Nonspendøble - represents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form (i.e.,
prepaid amounts) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e,, principal of
permanent fund).

Restricted - represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors,
or the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed - represents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes imposed by a formal action of Town
Meeting, which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Town. Committed amounts may be
established, modified, or rescinded only through actions approved by Town Meeting.

Assigned - represents amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but are
intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the Town's structure, only authorized assignments for non-
contractual encumbrances can be made by individual department heads.

Unnssigned - represents the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the negative residual fund balance of
any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting assigned fund balance amounts.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund
balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned,

Encumbrance amounts have been assigned for specific purposes for which resources already have been allocated.

O. Long-termDebt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net assets.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the debt is
issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general
government expenditures.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,201.2

P, Inaestment lncome

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income derived from the water and sewer enterprise fund is retained in the fund. Investment income
derived from the golf course enterprise fund is voluntarily assigned to the general fund.

A, Compensøted Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources/ are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and resignations.

R. Post Rethement Benefits

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In addifion to providing pension benefits and as more fully described in Note 11, the Town provides health and
life insurance coverage for current and future retirees and thei¡ spouses.

S. Use of Estimøtes

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

T. TotøI Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data
in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BudgetøryInformøtion

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting vote. The Finance
Committee presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town Meeting, which has full
authority to amend andf or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.
Increases or transfers between departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget require Special
Town Meeting approval.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior
fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized for an
appropriation account. Flowever, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service and other certain amounts,
regardless of whether such amounts are appropriated.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The
original fiscal year 2012 approved budget for the general fund authorized$772,563,895 in appropriations and
other amounts to be raised. During fiscal year 201,2, supplemental appropriations totaling fi4,373,854 were
authorized.

The Comptroller's office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control
is exercised through the accounting system.

B. Excess of Expenditures oaer Appropriøtions

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 20L2, expenditures exceeded appropriations for debt service principal and
interest. These over-expenditures will be funded by taxes during fiscal year 2013.

C. Funil Deficits

At June 30, 2012, the following fund deficit exists:

Fund Amount Funding Source

SPED 94-142...,... g 106,759 Federal grant
Title I. . 46,019 Federal grant
Teacher quality.. M,919 Federal grant
School choice revolving. 42,540 Available funds
911 departmental support & incentive....., 37,673 State grant
Together 2 substance abuse prevention,..., 24,883 Federal grant
911 training fiscal year 201.2.... 1.3,583 State grant
SPED early childhood 2011..... 11,521. Federal grant
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201'2

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Town (excluding the Pension Trust Fund qnd Institute)

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporarily idle cash in bank
term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government,
with maturities of one year or less; U.S, treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more
than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer's investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state
laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is
the same as the fair value of pool shares.

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and
i¡vestments. The deposits and investments of private purpose trust funds and the pension trust fund are held
separately from other Town funds,

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk thaf in the event of a bank failure, the Town's deposits may not be
recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of June 30, 2072,91.6,495,062
of the Town's bank balance of fi82,660,"177 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments Summary

The Town's investments at June 30,201,2 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment type,
with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Type
Fair

Value

Investment
Maturities
(in Years)

Less

Than 1

Debt Securities:
External investment pools............. $ 567,677 $ 567,677

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securifies.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of June 30, 2072 the Town's
investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

38
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Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The Town does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of June 30,2012, the credit
quality ratings of the Town's debt securities of fi567,677 are un¡ated.

PensionTrust Fund (The System)

The System has expanded investment powers, including the ability to invest in equity securities, corporate bonds
and other specified investments.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the System's deposits may not be
recovered. As of December 31, 2011, the System was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

lnvestments Summar)¡

The System's investments at December 31, 2071. are presented below. All investments are presented by
investment type, with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Type
Fair

Value

Investment
Maturities
(in Years)

Less
Than 1

Debt Securities:
Mutual bond funds
Fixed income securities........

15,061,,292

1,655

'1,5,061,,282

"t,655

Total debt securities. '15,062,937 fi 15,062,937

Other Investments:
Equity mutual funds.
Real estate investments........
Alternative investments,......

Total other i¡rvestments....,. 60,646,43

Total investments... $ 75109,280

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The System's policy regarding interest rate risk is that the duration of the fixed
income portfolio shall be maintained within a range of + ¡ - 75% of the duration of the fixed income benchmark
designated in the "Manager Specific Guidelines".

47,084,023
9,550,272

4,072,148
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Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the System will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
patry. The System does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of December 31,,2011, the
System's investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The System's policy regarding credit risk is that the average quality of all bond holding should be
maintained at A or better unless otherwise stated in the "Manager Specific Guidelines". As of December 3'1.,2011,,
the credit quality ratings of the System's debt securities are as follows:

Investment Type
Fair

Value

Quality
Ratings *

Unrated

Mutual bond funds............ $
Fixed income securities.,....

'1,5,061,292

7,655
1,5,06',1,,282

1,655

fi 15,062,937 û 15,062,937

* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor's (a national credit rating organization)

The lnstitute (Discretely Presented Component Llnit)

Investments Summary

The Institute's investments at June 30,2012 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment
type.

Investment Type
Fair

Value

Corporate bonds. .......,..... $ 419,816
Common and preferred stock...... 1,200,085

Total investments... fi 1,619,901.
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

AtJune 30,2012, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor governmental and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible amounts, are as follows:

Gross
Amount

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles
Net

Amount
Receivables:

Real estate and personal property taxes...., $
Real estate tax deferrals.......
Tax and trash liens.

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.........
Special assessments
Departmental and other..
Intergovernmental. .

Receivables:

Utility liens.... $
User charges.......
Special assessments

2,644,523 $

373,222
1,,556,'1,70

504,679

209,435
747,726

4,757,627

(72,557) $

(134,605)

(306,894)

2,57-1,966

31.3,222
'1,,556,170

370,074
209,435
440,932

4,757,627

$ 1.0,733,382 $

Gross
Amount

Allowance
for

Uncollectibles

fi 10,219,326

Net
Amount

(514,056)

At June 30,20L2, receivables for the water and sewer enterprise fund consist of the following:

220,321 $
3,289,397
7,850,328

57,052

220,32-I

3,289,397
1,,950,329

57,052

Governmental funds report defened reaenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following identifies the various components of
deferred reaenue reported in the governmental funds:

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
Receivable type:

Real estate and personal property taxes..... $
Real estate tax deferrals..........
Tax and trash liens..
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...
Special assessments
Departmental and other..
Intergovernmental (state chapter 90 roadway)....
Intergovernmental (other state and federal).......

fi 5,417,098 $ fi 5,417,098

Total
General
Fund

'J.,574,505 $
313,222

1,,556,170

370,074

32,957
440,832

125,231

-$

1,76,478

53,286

1,,574,505

3L3,222

1,556,770
370,074

209,435
M0,832

53,286
725,231,

Total.... g 4,412,991 fi 4,642,755

41,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,20L2

Nøtick High School

The Commonwealth has approved grants for school construction assistance. The assistance program, which is
administered by the MSBA, provides resources for allowable costs related to the school construction costs. The
MSBA has approved a maximum grant totaling approximately $38,209,000 for the construction costs related to
the Natick High School. The grant amount represents approximately 53% of the total state approved construction
cost of approximately $72,599,000. As of June 30,2072, approximately 567,328,000 has been spent on the project
and approximately $30,078,000 in MSBA grants has been accrued. AtJune 30,2012, a$1.,470,L06
intergovernmental receivable has been reported in the high school project major governmental fund's financial
statements for reimbursable costs incurred to date, but not reimbursed.
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NOTE5-CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended |une 30, 2012, was as follows:

Begiruring

Balance Increases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Govemmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land........,.
Construction in progress...

Total capital assets not being depreciated.....

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements.........

Buildings......

Machinery and equipment...........,.....
Vehicles.,.....
Library books...

Infrastrucfure

Total capital assets being depreciated...

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements......

Buildings.....

Machinery and equipment.................
Vehicles.......
Library books...

Infrastruchrre

Total accumulated depreciation......

Total capital asseb being depreciated, net..........,.......

Total governmental activities capital assets, net...... . .. ..

$ "t0:124,124 S

3't,075,94"t 47,772544

-$
(59"540)

1.0,-t24,724

78,788,945

41,200,065 47,772544

327,789

1.,418,748

756,233

751.,352

1.68,441

869,896

(59,540)

(36,722)

(285,63't)

88,91.3,069

2,509,747

97,837,350

4,254,"t91

6,920,295

2,481.,594

41.,1.66,738

2,837þ30

99,255,498

4,973,702

7,386,016

2,650,035

42,036,634

155,169,909 4,291,859 (322þ53)

36,722

267,478

'1.59,1.39A"ts

(1,580,288)

(41,182,362)

(2,745,804

(3,16"t,022)

(1,648,376)

(26,162,555)

(e2,6"t6)

(2,155ß4n

Q69,389)
(6W,"193)

(1.74,579)

(e1e,270)

('1,672,904)

(43337,709)

Q,078,474)
(3,502,73n

(7,822ß95)

(27,081ß2s)

(76,480,41.0) e,3nfi4)

(28,475)

304,200 (80,496þM)

78,689,499 78,Ø2,87"1

$ 119^889,564 $ 47,74+069 S (77,693) fi "167,555,940

(18,1s3)
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2012

Beginning

Balance Increases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Business-Type Activity- Watey'Sewer Enterprise:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land......
Construction in progress...

Total capital assets not being depreciated,........

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements.,.......
Machinery and equipment.............,..
Vehicles.....,.
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated,..

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements.........
Machinery and equipment......,..
Vehicles.......
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation........,......,.....

Total capital assets being depreciated, net................,.

Total water/sewer enterprise capital assets, net.,........

5,499,482 602,91.6 (564,546)

379,255

5,720,227 602,976

$

(564,546)

379,255

5,158,597

5,537,852

1.89,023

680,487

1.,179,369

50,575,696

132,533

104,722

"t,1.08,241.

(12,800)

(2"t,933)

189,023

800,220

1,26"t,158

57,683,937

(51,981)

(488,1ee)

(656,2s1)

(23,467,625)

(24,664,056)

27,959,519

(9,451)

(s0,302)

(e1.,e]e)

(1.,085,177)

(1,236,933)

108,663

12,800

21,933

34,733

53,934,338

(61.,432)

(525,701)

(726,22n

(24,5s2,796)

(25,866,756)

28,068,"t82

52,623,575 "t,345,496 (34,733)

33,459,001, $ Ztt,SZg $ (564,546)g 33,606,034
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,201.2

Beginning
BaÌance Increases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Business-Type Acfivity- Golf Course Enterprise:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land........,.., $

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements,
Buildings

Machinery and equipment..................

Total capital assets being depreciated...

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements...........
Buildings......
Machinery and equipment.........,..,.....

Total accumulated depreciation...............,.....

2,895,170 139,560

673,999 $ 673,999

2,647,719

120,513

127,478

8,520

137,040

2,655,639

251,,553

127,478

3,034,670

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Total golf course enterprise capital assets, net..........,., S 2,6j2,594 S 54,483

Total business-type activities capital assets, net........... $ 36,091,595 $ 766,062

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

Governmental Activities:
General government ......, $
Public safety..

Education

Public works..
Health and human services..

Culture and recreation......
Library..

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities. . . ., . .

Business-Type Activities:
Water and sewer.
Golf...

'1,85,497

701.,006

1,658,885

1,372,924

6,926

220,577

774,5t9

fi 4,320,334

L,236,g33

85,077

Total depreciation expense - business-t1zpe activities....... $ 1,,321,91,0

$

$

(7e8,4e2)

(10,s4s)

(127,478)

(936,515)

1,,958,595

(80,426)

(4,651,)

(85,077)

54,483

(878,918)

(75,196)

(127,478)

(1,021,592)

2,073,078

$ 2,687,077

g 36,293,1.77

follows:
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2072

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Receivables and payables between funds at |une30,201.2, are summarized as follows;

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

(1) Represents over-allocations of retirement benefits in previous fiscal years.

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2072, are summarized as follows;

Transfers In:

Nonmajor Golf Course
General Governmental Enterprise

Transfers Out: Fund Funds Fund Total

General Fund.. $
NonmajorGovernmentalFunds...,.. 1,,533,601
Water/Sewer Enterprise Fund....,,.. 2,535,888

- $ 77,399 $ SZO,OOO fi gSZ,399 (1)

- L,533,6lJ-t (2)

- 2,535,888 (3)

fi 4,069,499 $ Z7,3gg $ 3ZO,OOO g 4,466,999

(1) Represents transfer to the weights and measures special revenue fund ($12,399) and capital improvements
fund ($65,000). Also represents funding of debt service ($320,000) for the Sassamon Trace Golf Course.

(2) Represents budgeted transfers from parking meters ($60,000); Title V ($7,684); MSBA (fi723,1.67); mall
mitigation (9362,750) and mathworks mitigation ($980,000) special revenue funds

(3) Represents budgeted transfer of indirect costs

NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

¡ Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation notes
(RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN).

o Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN),

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expendifures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise funds,
respectively,

The Town has no short-term debt outstanding at June 30,201,2, and did not issue or retire any short-term debt
during the fiscal year,
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following represents a summary of changes that occurred in long-term obligations during the fiscal year
ended 1une30,2012:

Balance
june 30,

201-l Increases Decreases

Balance

June 30,

20't2
Current
Portion

Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable
Workers' compensation claims....
Landfill post-closure,.
Net OPEB obligation,....
Compensated absences..............

Total...........

Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable
Net OPEB obligation.....
Compensated absences..............

Total...........

fi 113,905,337

fi (7,633,388)
(243,748)
(34,043)

(3,390,722)

(21,102)

$ (1'1,322,403) $ "127,434,247

87,75't ,306
349,670

5M,688
23,749,753

2,1.09,920

13,569,670

1'1,281,,643

93,687,588
106,522

5't0,645
31,040,674

2,088,8'1.8

23,952,875

53,26-l

34,043

208,882

g 24,851,,313 fi 24,249,061

-15,740,347

525,739

90,864

3,517,175
268,908

17,289,454

713,826
90,811

3,947,533

9,081

$ (1,968,068) $

(80,821)

(53)

't6,356,950 
$ 3X8!,083 $ (2,048,942) fi- 78,094,097 $ 3,956,61.4

The governmental activities long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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NOTE9-LONG-TERMDEBT

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 20L2, and the debt service requirements are as follows:

Bonils øndNotes Pøyøble - GoaernmentølFunds

Proiect

Interest
Rate

Outstanding
at June 30,

2071

$ s9s,000 $
45,000

170,000

835,000

180,000

1,000,000

750,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

999,624

68,925

62,397

240,700

145,250

29,050

61,360

22,000

3,000

80,000

210,000

775,000

2,737,000

135,000

6,600,000

6,385,000

845,000

300,000

2,^195,000

135,000

3,170,000

53,077,000

Issued Redeemed

Outstanding
at June 3O

20'12

Morse Institute Library.... , .. . ..

Landfill Capping. . .. ,.. . .

Oil Tank Removal / Remediation
Morse InsLihrte Library..., . ... ..

Municipal Complex (Town Hall / Safety)................
Landfill Capping.. ..... . .

Morse Inslitute Library. ,.. . .....
Municipal Complex (Town Hall / Safery)................
Municipaì Complex (Town Hall / Safety)....,,..........
Landfill Capping (Net of Surplus to G.C.)................
Septic Title V (MWPAT) T5-97-7026......
Storm Water (M\ IPAT)......
Land Acquisition,.............,..
Fuel Storage (Residential ) , ...
FuelStorage(Municipal)..... . .

Septic Title V (MWPAT) T5-97-1026-1....

Capital Equipment (FY200Z) ATM 2006.... . ,

Capital Equipment (FY2007) ATM 2006. . ....
Lilja School. .. .

Brown School..
Lilja fthool,. .. .

Lilja fthool.. .. .

Lilja fthool.....
Bennet-Hemenway School. . .. .

Wilson Middle School. . ....... ..

Wilson Middle School.... . .. . ...

Kennedy Middle School. . .. . .. . .. .

M.P.L. of 2008.

Septic Title V (MWPAT) T5-97-7026-8...
M.P.L. of 2010.

M.P.L. of 2011.

M.P,L, of 2012.

General ObligaLion Refu-nding Bonds of 2012.....,.....

Total governmental funds. . ...... g 87,751,306 fi 1.3,s69,670 $ (2633,388) $ 93,687,588

5.26%

530%
5.29%

5.30y"

5.29y"

4.73%

4.67%

4.67%

4.87%

4.93y"

0.00%

0.00%

3.12v,

3.12%

3.1,2%

0.00%

3.88%

3.88%

5.30y"

533%
4.70%

4.70y"

4.947"

5.15%

4.74y"

4.74%

330%
3.38-s.00%

0.00%

2.00-2.75%

2.0u5.00%
2.004.00%
1.00-4.00%

(155,000)

(10,000)

(4s,000)

(220,000)

(s0,000)

(125,000)

(12s,000)

(s00,000)

(500,000)

(t't4,070)
(7,735)

(30,9s6)

(8Zooo)
(5¿soo)
(10,500)

þ,12n
(22,000)

(3,000)

(15,000)

(70,000)

(25,000)

(391,000)

(15,000)

(660,000)

(4es,ooo)

(65,000)

(100,000)

(4ss,000)

(7,s00)

(37s,000)

(2,8e7,o00)

440,000

35,000

125,000

615,000

130,000

875,000

625,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

88s,5s4

61,190

31,447

1,53,700

92,750

18,550

56,233

65,000

140,000

1s0,000

2,346,000

120,000

5,940,000

5,890,000

780,000

200,000
"t,740,000

"127,500

2,79s,000

50,180,000

3,933,000

9,636,670

3,933,000

9,636,670
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds and notes payable in future fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2013............. $ 23,952,975 $
2014... 7,1.54,967

6,696,547

6,134,699

5,892,569

5,079,959

4,202,369

3,952,659

3,51,0,602

3,307,721.

3,232,727

3,227,500

2,572,500

2,572,500

2,M2,500
2,442,500

2,442,500

2,435,000

2,435,000

2015....

2016...

2017..,.

2018..,

2019....

2020...

2021.....

2022...

2023....

2024...

2025....

2026...

2027....

2028.,,

2029....

2030...

2037....

2,971.,660 $
2,M0,713
2,234,837

2,023,132

1,754,840
-1,557,874

1.,392,798

1,223,386

1,,096,017

986,060
gg1,069

777,001

666,550

576,765

487,000

389,600

292,200
"194,800

97,418

26,924,535

9,595,680

8,937,378

8,757,831,

7,647,409

6,637,733

5,595,"167

5,176,045

4,606,61,9

4,293,78'l

4,113,790

4,004,50L

3,239,050

3,149,265

2,g2g,5oo

2,832,'1,00

2,734,700

2,629,goo

2,532,4"!8

Total... $ 93,687,588$ 22,049,214 '1,1,5,73-1,,302
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2012

Bonds øndNotes Pøyøble - EnterpriseEund (Wøter ønd Sewer)

Project
Interest

Rate

Outstanding
at June 30,

2011 Redeemed

Outstanding
at June 30,

2t]-t2Issued

Water Treatment Plant..........
Wa ter TreaLment Plant. . ,. . .. . . ,

Sewer (Pleasant, Rockwood,etc ) ....., . . ., .

Sewer (Pleasant, Eliot, Union,etc.). . ., . .

Sewer ( Unioa St),......
Water (Lakeshore Dr).,..,......
Water (Lakeshore Dr)...........
Sewer (Boden Ln & Water, LincoLr:r, etc,).........,........
Wate¡ Meters

Water Relining
Water Relining
Sewer (Lakeshore Rd).....,....
Sewer (Leach Ln)..,...,........
Water Elm Bank Refu¡ded
Water Meters..

Sewer (Speen St, Pa¡k Ave..,............
Water Teatment (MWPAT) Refunded.......
Water Mains - Lining,........
M.P.L. of 2O08-Deparhnental Equipment.....
M.P.L. of 2008-Deparhnental Equipment.,... ..... .......
M.P.L. of 2010-Sewer..............
M.P.L. of 20lO-Departrnental Equipment - Sewer.. .. . .

M.P,L. of 2010-Water Mains - Lining.........
M.P.L. of 2010-We11..............

M.P,L. of 2010-Water Departrnen tal Equipment. . .. . .. .

Sewer (M\AIRA).... . ...
M.P.L. of 2011-Water Mains - Lining.......,.
Water Deparhnental Equipment...................,....
Building Remodeling - Public Works.. ...... ...... ...

WeII....,....
Wa ter Departrnental Equipment.. ...,. .... ......,. ... ..

Building Remodeling - Sewer............
Sewer(MWRA) ..,. . ...
General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2012. . . . . .. . .. .

Total Water/Sewer enterprise fund., .. . .. . .., g 13,709,971 g 3,775,84s $ (1,,772,1,38) 5 -t5,-r13,678

3.25-3.75%

4.73%

4.7'Iy"

4.92%

4.90o/o

4.94y"

5.14%

5.09o/"

4.1,9%

4.1,9%

4.790/"

4.71,%

4.7370

2.96%

3.30y"

4.03%

2.007"

3.38-s.00%

3.38-5.00%

3.38-5,00%

2.00-3.25%

2.00-3.'250/"

2.00-3.25"/"

2.00-3.25yo

2.00-3.250/"

0,00%

2.00-5.00y"

2.00-4.00%

2.00-4.00%

2.00-4.00%

2.00-4.00y"

2.00-4.00%

0.00%
^1.00-4.007"

135,000

481,000

97,000

315,000

245,000

225,000

250.000

400,000

180,000

70,000

140,000

220,000

110,000

275,000

10s,000

1,680,000

4,035,063

2100,000
60,000

15,000

270,000

2:25,000

540,000

225,000

450,000

61,908

800,000

(30,000)

(62,000)

(12,000)

(3s,000)

(30,000)

(25,000)

(25,000)

(40,000)

(180,000)

(70,000)

(140,000)

(20,000)

(10,000)

(140,000)

(3s,000)

(105,000)

(227,661)

(300,000)

(i0,000)
(1s,000)

(30,000)

(2s,000)

(60,000)

(25,000)

(50,000)

$5,4m
(5s,000)

$ 105,000

419,000

85,000

280,000

215,000

200,000

225,000

360,000

200,000

100.000

135,000

70,000

7,575,000

3,807,402
1,800,000

50,000

240,000
200,000

480,000

200,000

400,000

46,437

745,000
150,000

66,000

300,000

260,000

504,000

196,845
7,699,000

150,000

66,000

300,000

260,000
504,000

196,84s
7,699,000
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for water and sewer enterprise fund bonds and notes payable
in future fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Interest Total

2013............
201,4...

2075...

2076...

2077.,.

2018...

2019...

2020...

2021,..

2022...

2023..,

2024...

2025..

2026..

2027...

Principal

3,386,757 $
"I,Mg,g69

1,,400,294

1,,379,663

1,,382,41,0

1,290,797

888,408

889,155

663,902

676,522

491,269

505,889

510,763

155,000

105,000

3,907,337

1,888,524

1,,795,055

7,728,117

1,673,412
"1,526,723

7,073,1,95

1,035,693

775,656

702,088

550,449

541,,29-l

525,1,56

763,273

1.07,179

514,590

439,655

394,771.

348,454

297,002

235,936

184,787
"147,538

1.77,754

85,566

59,180

35,402

14,393

8,273

2,779

Total.. g 15,11,3,678

Bonds ønd Notes Pøyøble - Enterprise Funil (Golfl

fi 2,873,470 g 17,997,1.49

Outstanding
at June 30,

207"1 Issued RedeemedProject
Interesl

Rate

Outstanding
at Jurre 30,

2012

Municipal Golf Course.. .

Surplus Proceeds from Landfill to Golf Course. . ., . ,.

Surplus Proceeds from Landfill to Golf Cou¡se. . .. . . .

General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2072. . .. . .. . . .

Total Golf enterprise fund s 2,030,376 S 341'330 $ (1es,930) $ 2,"t7s,776

4.73%

4.93%

4,93%

1,.00-4.00%

1,625,000 $

320,7s8

84,61,8

(1s0,000)

(36,s28)

(e,402)

L,475,000

284,230

75,21,6

347330347,330
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended |une 30, 20L2

Debt service requirenents for principal and interest for golf course enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in
future fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Interest Total

2013..........
201,4..........
2015,.........
201,6..........
2017..........
2018..........
2019..........
2020..........
2021,..........
2022..........

Principal

$ 560,776 $
794,370

193,790

193,500

192,630

187,340

191,g30

18L,540

145,000

145,000

97,027

90,775

80,367

69,258

57,717

46,190

35,015

23,947

14,790

7,395

657,803

285,085

274,157

262,758

250,U7
233,530

2L6,U5
205,487
't59,790

152,395

Tota1.........9 2,175,776 5 522,421, fi 2,698,197

The Town receives subsidy assistance from the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (MWPAT).
Principal and interest on the outstanding bonds for MWPAT is subsidized over the life of the bonds to assist the
Town in the repayment of this future debt. During fiscal year 2012, the Town s subsidy totaled approximately
$95,000. Future subsidies total approximately $733,000. The amount of MWPAT bonds outstanding at June 30,
2072, totaled V,083,7 66.

The Massachusetts Water Resource Authority (MWRA) operates an Infiltration/Inflow Financial Assistance
Program for community owned collection systems. For each communit5r approved for the projec! financial
assistance received from the MWRA consists of a grant and non-interest bearing loan (payable in five equal
arurual installments), At fune 30,2012, the outstanding principal amount of these loans totaled 946,431.

During fiscal year 2012, tl:re Town issued 917,086,845 of general obligation bonds for refunding (current), building
remodeling, community/senior center construction, paving, departmental equipment and water/sewer related
items.

Current Refunding - Iune 2012

On June 
'1, 2012, the Town issued 911.,677,000 in current refunding bonds to refund $18,585,000 of previously

issued and outstanding bonds with an average interest rate of approximately 4.9%. The average interest rate of
the current refunding bonds is approximately 3.3o/o.

The net proceeds of approximately $19,0L5,000 (after payment of approximately $109,000 in bond issuance costs,
premium of approximately $806,000 and an equity contribution from the MSBA of approximately $6,641,000)
were used to retire the outstanding bonds and the related accrued interest.

As a result of this refunding, the Town will reduce its total gross debt service payments over the remaining life of
the bonds by approximately fi9,125,000 and will realize an economic gain (difference between the present values
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $2,2s3,000.

Subsequent Event

On August 1.,2012, the Town disbursed the funds required to retire the outstanding bonds related to the current
refunding discussed above.

52



Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At |une 30,201.2, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

High school construction ........... $
Force main bradford/pamela - sewer....
Community senior center.
Modular classrooms.
Sewer I&L....
Parking garage demolition and architecture plans......
Replace ground water wells
Springvale plant modification - water.
Charles river dam renovations
Security cameras.
Fire station renovations

47,"140,000

1,650,000

1,000,000

600,000

597,920
540,000

300,000

200,000

87,000
85,000

600

Total.. g 52,200,520

NOTE 10 - LANDFILL POSTCLOSURE CARE

State and federal laws and regulations required the Town to close its old landfill site when it stopped accepting
waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site after closure. The Town had
operated a solid waste landfill that ceased operations in 1988 and, accordingly, was subsequently capped and
funded via long-term debt. The Town has reflected $510,645 as the estimated landfill post-closure care liability at
June 30, 2012. Actual costs may be higher due to inflafion, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

NOTE 11- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

PlanDescription -The Town provides health and life insurance coverage for its retirees and their survivors
(hereinafter referred to as the "Plan") as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit
(OPEB) plan. Chapter 328 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Changes to
plan design and contribution rates must be accomplished through the collective bargaining process. The Plan
does not issue a stand alone financial report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of
paying benefits under the Plan.

The number of participants as of luly 1,,2010, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees.. 984
Retired employees and spouses.... 813

Total.. . . _1]W_

Funding Policy -The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established and may be
amended by the Town, The required health insurance contribution rates of Plan members and the Town
(including Medicare Part B) are50%, respectively. The Plan members and Town each contribute 50% towards a

$5,000 term life insurance premium. The Town currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current
obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the Town.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2072

Annuøl OPEB Cost øndNet OPEB Obligøtion - The Town's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuarially detern'rined amount that is calculated in
accordance with the parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amofttze any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the Town's annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the Town
net OPEB obligation:

Amount

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation..
Adjustment to annual required contribution. . . . .

Annual OPEB cost.
Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation.
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year........

Net OPEB obligatron at end of year.

g 11,,688,669

947,020
(1,085,138)

11,550,551

(3,47L,543)

g,07g,0og

23,675,492

3"1,754,500

Trend information regarding annual pension cost, the percentage of the annual pension cost contributed and the
net pension obligation is as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending

June 30, 201,0......

June 30, 2011,......

June 30,2072......

Annual
OPEB Cost
(AOPEBC)

$ 1't,495,066
11,,022,241,

11,550,551

Percentage

of AOPEBC
Contributed

29.8y,

30.2%

30.1%

Net
OPEB

ObLigation

g 1.5,985,607

23,675,492

37,754,500

Funded Støtus ønd Funding Progress - The funded status of the Plan at July 7,20L0, the most recent actuarial
valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(A)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
Projected Unit

Credit
(B)

Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)

(B-A)

Covered

Payroll
(c)

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered

Payroll
((B-A)/c)

"196o/.119,797,237 g 119,197,23707/01,/1,0 $
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employmenç mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedules of funding
Progress/ presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information that show whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Methoils ønd Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
Plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date:

Actuarial cost method:

Amortization method:

Remaining amortization period :

Interest discount rate:

Healthcare/ Medical cost trend rate:

Projected salary increases:

July 1,2010

Entry Age Normal

Level percentage of projected payroll

30 years atJuly 1,2070 (open)

4.00y,

9.00% beginning in 2010 to an ultimate level of 5.00% :lir2074

2.50% annually

Allocøtion of AOPEBC - AOPEBC costs were allocated to the Town's functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:
General government $
Public safety.
Education.
Public works,
Health and human services.
Culture and recreation. . ... ..

Library..

Total AOPEBC - governmental activities....

Busine ss-Type Activities:
Water and sewer,
Golf

699,002
2,659,300

7,074,180

382,576

65,496

177,1.83

283,906

11.,281.,643

237,826

31.,082

Total AOPEBC - business-type activities. ... 268,908

Total AOPEBC....... g 11,550,551
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NOTE 12 - FUND BALANCES

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregate in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet are detailed as

follows:

High School
Project Fund

Debt
Service

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmenta-l

FundsGeneral

Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal $ - $ 1.4,072 $ 1,4,072

Resfricted:
Current refunding......
Debt service...

Sub-total - Reshicted.....

Committed:
Subsequent year's expenditures. . ,. . .

Capital stabilization...
Continuing appropria tions

Sub-total - Committed...

Assigrred:
Encumbrances

1,027,344 2,854,043 1.6,942,273

2,979,340
1,478,084

3,703,964

1,027,344
Schoolconstruction....,.................. - 2,854,042
Senior center construcLion. . .

School lunch,.
Bus bransporation.,.........,.. .... .. ..,...
Capital..........
Medicaid.......
Cable fees...,..
Circuit breaker. . .. . .. . .. ... . .. . ..

Coruervation commission. . ..

Recrealíon revolving.......
General government...
Public safety..
Education. . .. ..

Public works..
Health and human services. , .. . .. . .. . .

CulLure and recreation
Library........,.

- 16,942,273

1,,467,270

1,830,232

223,785
232,698

4,476,501
354,354
329,32'L

866,976

4,995,207

69-t,-170

7,565,4X,
336,379

7,307,116
507,23"1

403,725

154,1,50

9,659

76,942,273

2,494,614
2,854,M3
7,830,232

223,785
232,698

4,4-16,507

354,354
329,321
866,976

4,995,207

691,,"170

1,565,423

336,379

1,307,1,16

507,231

403,725

154,150

9,659

40,508,85719,685,"197

2,979,340
1,478,084

3,103,964

7,561,388

1.,575,434

14,510,553

7,56t,388

1.575,434

Unassigrred,,, (46e,676) "r4,040,937

fi 24,674,779 6 2,854,043 $ 16,942,2735 19,229,6539 63,700,688

NOTE 1.3 - STABILIZATION FUNDS

The Town maintains a general stabilization fund, capital stabilization fund and operational stabilization fund that
were established under MGL Chapter 40, Section 58. Appropriations in and out of these stabilization funds
require two-thirds vote of Town meeting. Investment income is retained by the fund.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,201.2

The balances of the general stabilization fund, capital stabilization fund and operational stabilization fund at June
30, 2012 are $4,280,594,'1,,478,084 and $856,478, respectively. The capital stabilization fund balance is reported in
the general fund as committed and the remaining stabilization funds are reported as unassigned fund balance in
the general fund.

NOTE 14 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft ol damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance.

The Town provides health insurance through its participation in the West Suburban Health Group (Group), a
non-profit trust comprised of 11 towns, one school district and two educational collaboratives. The Town
recognizes the cost of providing health insurance by recording its share (depending on the plan, contribution
rates range between 50% and 90%) of insurance premiums paid to the Group in the general fund in the fiscal year
paid. The purpose of the Group is to pay medical claims of its members' employees and their covered
dependents.

The Town participates in a premium-based workers' compensation plan. In prior years, the Town was self-
insured for workers' compensation and is liable for the payment of certain claims from those periods. The claims
are administered by a third party administrator and are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis from annual
appropriations. The estimated future liabilify is based on history and injury type. The estimated liability at |une
30, 2012, totaled 9106,522.

NOTE 15 - OPERATING LEASES

Lessee

The Town is committed under several operating leases for a parking lot, golf course land and a modular building
used as a clubhouse and administrative building at the golf course. During fiscal year 2012, the Town paid
approximately $126,000 related to these leases, which are accounted for in the general fund and golf course
enterprise fund. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Go a ernmmt øl Actiaitie s

Fiscal Year Payment

51,000

52,02020"t4

Busine s s -Typ e A ctiu ities

Fiscal Year Payment

62,997
64,887

66,834
68,839
70,904
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NOTE 16 - PENSION PLAN

PlønDescription -The Town contributes to the System, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Natick Contributory Retirement Board. Substantially all employees of the
Town are members of the System, except for public school teachers and certain administrators who are members
of the Commonwealth's Teachers Retirement System.

Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The System
provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth's state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted aÍter 1997 must be authorized by the Natick Contributory Retirement Board and are borne
by the System. The System issues a publicly available report in accordance with guidelines established by the
Commonwealth's Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by
contacting the System located at 13 East Central Street, Natick, Massachusetts 01760.

Pløn Membership - At Decemb er 31,, 2011,, the System's membership consists of the following:

Active members.
lnactive members..
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benenfits..

570

91.

372

Unfunded
AAL Funded Covered

(UAAL) Ratio Payroll
(B-A) (A/B) (c)

g 53,206,833 64.0% S 27,627,175

Funding Policy - Chapter 32 of MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the Town. Plan members
are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5o/o to 11% of annual covered compensation. The
Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial determined contribution that is
apportioned among the employers based on arurual covered payroll.

Contributions are recognized as additions in the period when they become due pursuant to formal commitments,
statutory or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized as deductions when incurred and
administrative expenses are funded through investment earnings.

Annuøl Pension Cost - The Town's contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 201.2,2011., and
2010 were 95,826,520,95,575,618, and $5,335,519, respectively. The current and two preceding fiscal years
apportionment of the annual pension cost between the two employers required the Town to contribute 985% of
the total. At June 30,2012, the Town did not have a net pension obligation.

Funded Støtus ønd Eunding Progress - The funded status of the plan atJanuary 1,, 20^1^1, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(A)

g 94,697,600

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
Entry Age

(B)

$ 1.47,904,433

UAAL as a

Percentage
of Covered

Payroll
((B-A)/c)

192.6%01/01/1'1

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to
the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets
are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benefits.
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Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Valuation date:

Actuarial cost method:

Amortization method:

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return:

Projected salary increases:

january 7,2071

Entry age normal

4.00% increasing, with an 8.00% cap

Remaining amortization period: 19 years from July 1,2011(open)

Asset valuation method: The difference between the total return and the expected return on a
market value basis and is recognized over a ten-year period for the
year ended December 31,,2008 and over a five-year period for all other
years.

Cost of living adjustments:

8.00%

Based on years of service, ranging fromT.00% decreasing to 4.75% after 9

years of service for Group 1 employees, ranging from7.00% decreasing
to 5,00% after 7 years for service for Group 2 employees and ranging
from 8.00% decreasing to 5.25% after 8 years for Group 4 employees

3.00% of first $12,000 of retirement income

Legølly Required Reserae Accounús - The balance in the System's legally required reserves as of December 31,
2011 are as follows:

Description Amount Purpose

Annuity Savings Fund.., $ 28,427,504 Active members' contribution balance
Annuity Reserve Fund.. 7,852,331, Retired members' contribution account
Pension Reserve Fund., . 39,530,008 Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement
Pension Fund.. 3,489,624 Remaining net assets

Total.. g 79,293,467

Noncontributory Retirement Alloutønce -The Town pays the entire retirement allowance for certain retirees who
are eligible for noncontributory benefits and are not members of the System. The general fund expenditure for
fiscal year 201.2 totaled approximately $75,000.

NOTE 17 - MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Public school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System,
to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers
Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth, The amount of these on-behalf payments
totaled approximately $10,314,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, and, accordingly, are reported in the
general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension expenditures.
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NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS

The Town is currently in the process of constructing the Natick High School and Community/Senior Center. At
June 30, 2012 approximately 967,328,000 and 97,6M,000, respectively, had been spent on the projects and
approximately fiS,271,000 and $1,403,000, respectively, is required to complete these projects.

The Town has also entered into, or is planning to enter into, contracts totaling approximately $4,061,000 for water
and sewer projects, modular classrooms, roadway projects and the purchase of departmental equipment.

Other significant commitments include the encumbrances and continuing appropriations outstanding for the
general fund, which totaled 94,679,398 at June 30,2012.

NOTE 19 - CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, ú any, at
June 30, 201'2, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the Town at June 30,2012.

The Town participates in a number of federal awatd programs. Although the grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 7996 through June 30, 2012, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, tf any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts,
ú any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 20 - FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements:

to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. Management does not believe the implementation of this
Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

No. 34, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2073. Management does not believe the
implementation of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

1989 FASB ønd AICPA Pronouncements, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013.
Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will impact the basic financial
statements.

Statement No. 63, Financiøl Reporting of Deferred Outllows of Resources, Deferred lnflows of Resources, and Net
Position, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. The implementation of this
Statement will require a change to the title of the Statement of Net Assets to the Statement of Net
Position.

Statement No. 65, Items Preaiously Reported as Assets and Liøbilities, which is required to be implemented
during fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will
significantly impact the basic financial statements.

60



Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June30,2072

is required to be implemented during fiscal year 201,4. Management does not believe the implementation
of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

required to be implemented during fiscal year 201.4. The implementation of this Statement will require a
change to the title of the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets to the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, as

well as expanded note disclosures and required supplementary information.

27, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 201,5. The implementation of this Statement
will represent a significant change in the accounting and reporting of pension expense and the related
liability. For the first time, the Town will be required to recognize its long-term obligation for pension
benefits as a liability and to more comprehensively measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The
implementation of this Statement also expands pension related note disclosures and required
supplementary information.

These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective implementation dates.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

P¡ior Year
Encumbrances

and Confinuing Original
Appropriations Budget

Supplemental
Appropriafions
and Transfers

Final
Budget

85,326,726

3,749,760

1,300,000

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes
Motor vehÍcle and other excise taxes....
Hotel/motel tax

82,904,969 $

3,749,760

1,300,000

2,427,757 $

Tax liens.
Payments in lieu of taxes.

Trash disposal...
Intergove¡nmental ...
Special assessments.. .,. .......
Penalties and interest on taxes. .. ...........
Licenses and permib
Fines and fo¡feirures. .. ,....
Departmental and othe¡,
lnveslment income....

TOTAL REVENUES 104,540,831. 2,427,757 106,962,588

26,429
"1,007,283

77,587,"173

20,000

463,020

7,263,643

160,000

1,958,554

100,000

26,429

7,007,283

77,587,773

20,000

463,020

1,263,643

160,000

7,958,554

100,000

6,247,708

73,81"t,407

48,617,334

9,90s,040

7,249,960

674,246

2,08s,004

5,777,032
74,884,436

536,033

7,360,929

7,592,269

3,277,930

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government..... ..,
Public safety.....
Education.........
Public works.
Health and human seryices....
Culhrre and recreation...
Library..
Pension benefits.

Properly and liability insurance
State and county charges.... ..

Debt service:
Principal........
Interest.......

TOTAL EXPENDITURRS . 2,^177,550

(2,771,550)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

1.71,026,521 2,808,657 175,946,722

(6,48s,690) (386,894) (8,984,734)

753,679

229,464

232,9"13

840,554

866

954
99

37,946
75,07s

5,369,312
1.3,298,005

48,"133,740

8,785,470

7,125,757

622,772

2,087,645

5,7"17,032

1.s,269,272

520,958

1,360,929

5,638,585

3,103,770

4,069,489

(7,537,374)

7"t8,1"t7

283,932

257,287

279,076

723,343

50,520
3,260

(422,722)

-t,953,684

168,760

689,340

(1.,s6s,203)

OVER EXPENDITURES.

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in. ........,,
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes..... ,.........
Transfe¡s out...,...........

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,111,ss0)

75,243,736

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR. . ,........,

See notes to basic financial statements.

2,532,'t75 (875,863)

4,758,829

(3,"r02,57n

1.,656,252

(1,262,7sn (7,327,882)

"t5,243,736 75,243,736

s 13,980,979 $ 7,915,854

(3,953,575)

75,243,736

g 13,732,786 $ 71,290,167
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Actual

Current Year
Encumb¡ances

and Continuing
Appropriations

Actual and
Encumbrances

and Continuing
Appropriations

$ 85,587,087

4,086,336

7,297,42i
577,430

47,583
u7,990

79,809,082

4,67"1

424,"185

2,274,499

222,57'1.

2,498,706

155,369

Variance
Positive/
(Negative)

$ 260,367

336,576

Q,57n
5"r7,430

27,154
(1,se,2e3)

8,227,909

(15,329)
(38,83s)

1,010,856

62,57"1

540,"ts2

s5,369

384,793
367,565

"14,987

702,092
52,072

7,377

25r
75,357

716,487

64,^168

717,942

p3,11n
(23,171)

85,587,087

4,086,336

7,297,423

577,430

47,583
847,990

19,809,082

4,677

424,785

2,274,499

222,577

2,498,706

155,369

"117,772,872

4,352,507

73,108,643

48,066,070

7,707,082
7,777,787

649,226

1,980,929

5,701,675

74,1,35,372

445,700

7,242,987

7,625,386

3,295,"101

1,504,414

335,793

536,283
2,707,866

20,707

77,703
"103,824

32,643

26,765

5,856,915

73,443,836

48,602,353

9,202,948

7,797,888

666,929

2,084,753

5,701.,675

74,767,9s5

477,865

1,242,987

7,625,386

3,295,"r07

777,772,872 "10,810,2U

108,881,193 4,679,398

8,897,679 (4,679,398)

4,758,829

328,709
(3,113,388)

^t,974,150

70,865,829 (4,679,398)

75,243,736 75,243,736

fi 26,109,565 $ 10,564,338

113,560,591 2,386,737

4,272,281 "ß,"r96,475

4,758,829

328,709 328,709
(3,113,388) (10,811)

1,974,^150

6,786,431

"15,243,736

31,7,898

13,574,373

g 27,430,167 g "13,574,313
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PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide i¡formation related to the System as a whole, for which the Town is one
participating employer:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (SYSTEM)

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded

UAAL as a

Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (^/B) (c) ((B-A)/c)

07/01,/17 g 94,697,600 g 147,904,433 $ 53,206,833 64.0% g 27,627,1.75 1,92.6%

01/01/08 90,995,090 131.,269,31.4 40,3g3,234 69.2% 25,775,476 156.7%
01/01/06 79,234,306 118,903,286 39,669,980 66.6% 24,81,4,583 1,59.9%
07/07/04 70,246,977 109,024,236 38,777,359 64.4% 22,1,70,379 774.9%
07/07/02 68,985,592 700,572,575 37,586,923 68.6% 22,056,744 143.2%
01/0"t/00 64,669,753 99,688,360 25,019,207 72.1,% 19,611,143 734.4%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM)

Annually
Required Percentage of

Year Ended Contributions ARC
December 3L (ARC) Contribured (%)

2006 $ 5,059,655 100
2007 5,541,639 100
2009 5,334,374 100
2009 5,41.9,1.51. 100
201,0 5,667,969 100
2071, 5,91.6,756 100

The following schedule provides information related to the Town's portion of the System's ARC:

TOWN SHARE OF SYSTEM ARC

Fiscal Year
Percentage of Town ARC

ARC as a Percentage of
Ended ARC Contributed (%) System ARC (%)

2007 g 4,983,669 100
2008 5,460,965 100
2009 5,255,41.4 100
2070 5,335,5L9 100
2011, 5,575,679 100
2072 5,826,520 100

98.5%

985%
98.5%

98.5%

985%
985%
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULE

The following schedule provides information related to the Town's other postemployment benefits plan:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

UAAL as a

Percentage

of Covered

Payroll
((B-A)/c)

1967o

1,87%

-$ 119,1.87,237 fi 119,'197,237

111,743,502 111,V43,502

The significant change to the methods and assumptions used in the actuarial valuations identified above that
impacted trends in the schedules of funding progress is the increase in the trend on medical and prescription
drug costs.

Toean of Nntiek, Møssøchusetts 67 R e q uir e d S upp I em ent øry lnf o rm ø ti on



Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended June3},2012

NOTE A - BUDGETARY - GAAP RECONCILIATION

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting, A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, is presented below:

Budgetary
revenues/
balance -

Total on GAAP basis of accounting...........

Reclassifications
To reclassify the stabilization fund to the general fund......,............
To reclassify the capital stabilization fund to the general fund.,.......
To reclassify the operating stabilization fund to the general fund,....
To reclassify MSBA lump-sum payment to the debt service fund.....

Other
Financing

Expenditures Sources (Uses)

]13,560,591. $ 1,,974,1,50

16,551

10,313,920
75,s06

(4,67e,3e8)

't1,9,287,1.70 -t,974,-t50

-t,170,-t7-l

856,478

4,000,799

basis as reported on tlre schedule of
expenditures and changes in fund

Revenues

fi 117,772,872

380,879

793,967

16,55'l
'1,0,313,920

budget and actual....

Adjustments
Net change in recording 60-day receipts........
Net change in recording tax refunds payable........
To record VII,VPAT debt service subsidy........
To record MTRS on-behalf payments.......,.
Net change in recording other expenditures
To record encumbrances and continuing appropriations..........,,,,..

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expendituresandchangesinfundbalances....... g 122,636,529 fi llg,ZgT,"lZO
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